

**Laws**  
**Enacted by the 1981 Legislature**  
**Volume 1: Chapters 1 to 186**

1981 Senate Bill 10

Date published: February 14, 1981

**CHAPTER 1, Laws of 1981**  
**(Vetoed in Part)**

AN ACT to repeal 20.370 (4) (ca); to renumber 144.24 (10); to renumber and amend 16.53 (10) and 20.370 (4) (ja); to amend ~~16.50 (1), (2), (5) and (6)~~, 20.370 (1) (ea) and (4) (ca) and (cc), 20.835 (2) (b), 20.866 (2) (tm), 20.867 (2) (f), 49.19 (4) (b), 70.996 (1) (a) 3, ~~79.02 (2) (c)~~, 79.20 (1) (b), ~~85.035~~, 144.24 (1), (4) (c), (7) and (9) (c), and 144.245 (1) (intro.), (2), (3), (5) to (8), (9) (intro.) and (a), (11), (12) (a) to (c) and (14) (a) (intro.), (c) and (d), as renumbered; to repeal and recreate 16.53 (11); and to create ~~16.50 (7)~~, 16.53 (10) (b) to (e), 20.003 (4), 20.370 (4) (kb) and (kc), 20.855 (4) (dm) and (u), 20.866 (2) (tn), ~~70.996 (1) (a) 4, 79.03 (4) (g)~~ and 144.24 (4) (c) 3 and (10) of the statutes, relating to revising the Wisconsin fund appropriation, revising the point source pollution abatement program, placing limitations upon appropriations from general purpose revenues, placing limitations upon disbursements from general purpose revenue sum sufficient appropriations, authorizing appropriations reestimates, authorizing expenditure of certain anticipated state revenues, priority for payment of state claims, a procedure for reduction of state expenditures in the event of insufficient revenues, initial payment of aid to families with dependent children, authorizing bonding and making appropriations and appropriation changes.

Vetoed  
in Part

*The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:*

~~SECTION 1. 16.50 (1), (2), (5) and (6) of the statutes are amended to read:~~  
~~16.50 (1) EXPENDITURES. (a) Each department except the legislature and the courts shall prepare and submit to the secretary an estimate by quarters of the amount of money which it proposes to expend upon each of its divisions, activities, functions and programs encumber or distribute under any appropriation in ch. 20. The department of administration shall prepare and submit estimates for expenditures from appropriations under ss. 20.855, 20.865, 20.866, 20.867, 20.876, 20.877 and 20.878. The secretary may waive the submission of estimates of other than administrative expenditures from such funds as he or she determines. Estimates shall be prepared in such form and, at such times and for such time periods as the secretary requires. Revised and supplemental estimates may be presented at any time under rules to be prescribed by the secretary.~~

~~(b) This subsection does not apply to appropriations under ss. 20.835 and 20.865 (4).~~  
~~(2) ACTION THEREON BY SECRETARY. The secretary shall examine each such estimate to determine whether appropriations are available therefor and can be made without incurring danger of exhausting such appropriations before the end of the appropriation period and whether there will be sufficient revenue to meet such contemplated expenditures. The secretary also shall examine each estimate to assure as nearly as possible that the proposed plan of program execution reflects the intentions of the joint committee on~~

**VETOED**

finance, legislature and governor, as expressed by them in the budget determinations. If satisfied that such estimate meets these tests, ~~he the secretary shall approve the same estimate; otherwise he or she shall disapprove the same estimate, in whole or in part, as the facts require. If the secretary is satisfied that an estimate for any period is more than sufficient for the execution of the normal functions of a department, he or she may modify or withhold such estimates. It is the intent of the legislature that this approval of the estimate. This section shall be strictly construed by the secretary to the end that such budget determinations and policy decisions reflected by such determinations be implemented to the fullest extent possible within the concept of proper management.~~

**(5) DISBURSEMENTS.** ~~The secretary may not draw a warrant for payment of any expenditures incurred by any department nor may any department make any expenditure for which the approval of the secretary or the governor is necessary under this section, including any expenditure under s. 20.867, unless the expenditure was made in accordance with an estimate submitted to and approved by the secretary or by the governor.~~

**(6) PROPORTIONAL SPENDING.** ~~If the secretary determines that expenditures of general purpose or segregated fund revenues are utilized to match revenues received under s. 16.54 or 20.001 (2) (b) for the purposes of combined program expenditure, the secretary may require that disbursements of the general purpose revenue and corresponding segregated revenue be in direct proportion to the amount of program revenue or corresponding segregated revenue which is available or appropriated in ch. 20 or as condition of a grant or contract. If the secretary makes such a determination, the agency shall incorporate the necessary adjustments into the quarterly expenditure plans provided for in sub. (1).~~

**SECTION 2.** ~~16.50 (7) of the statutes is created to read:~~

**16.50 (7) REVENUE SHORTFALL.** ~~(a) If following the enactment of the biennial budget act in any biennium the secretary determines that there will not be sufficient revenues in the current or forthcoming fiscal year to meet previously authorized expenditures, he or she shall immediately notify the governor, the presiding officers of each house of the legislature and the joint committee on finance.~~

~~(b) Following such notification, the governor shall submit a bill containing his or her recommendations for correcting the imbalance between projected revenues and authorized expenditures. If the legislature is not in a floor period at the time of the secretary's notification, the governor shall call a special session of the legislature to take up the matter of the projected revenue shortfall and the governor shall submit his or her bill for consideration at that session.~~

**SECTION 3.** ~~16.53 (10) of the statutes is renumbered 16.53 (10) (a) and amended to read:~~

**16.53 (10) (a)** ~~If, between February 22, 1976, and 30 days after the publication of the budget adopted for the 1977-79 fiscal biennium or between February 1, 1981, and June 30, 1981, or the day following publication of the 1981-83 executive budget act, whichever is later, an emergency arises which requires the department to draw vouchers for payments which will be in excess of available funds in any state fund, the secretary, in consultation with the state treasurer, and after notifying the joint committee on finance under par. (b), may prorate and establish priority schedules for all payments within each fund, including those payments for which a specific payment date is provided by statute. The secretary shall draw all vouchers according to the following preference. All direct or indirect payments of principal or interest on state bonds and notes have first priority and may not be prorated or reduced under this subsection. All state employe payrolls shall have 2nd priority. All payments to local units of government which are required by statute to be made on a specific date and all aid payments to individuals have 3rd priority. All remaining payments have 4th priority. The secretary shall maintain records of all claims prorated under this subsection and shall provide written notice to the state treasurer when a potential cash flow emergency is anticipated.~~

**SECTION 4. 16.53 (10) (b) to (e) of the statutes are created to read:**

16.53 (10) (b) Whenever the secretary proposes to exercise his or her authority under par. (a), he or she shall, after consultation with the state treasurer, notify the joint committee on finance as to the need for any proration or prioritization and the procedures under which such proration or prioritization shall occur. If the joint committee on finance has not, within 2 working days after such notification, scheduled a meeting to review the secretary's proposal, the secretary may proceed with the proposed action. If the committee schedules a meeting within 2 working days after such notification, the secretary may not proceed with the proposed action until after the meeting is held.

(c) If the secretary prorates or establishes priority schedules for payments which are to be made to local units of government, he or she shall establish a procedure whereby any local unit of government which can demonstrate that it would be adversely affected by such action of the secretary may appeal to the secretary for a waiver from having its payment prorated or delayed. In establishing this procedure, the secretary shall consider a local unit of government adversely affected if it can demonstrate that the proration or delay would cause a financial hardship because the scheduled payment had been budgeted as a revenue to be available at the scheduled time of payment and the local unit of government would otherwise have insufficient revenues to meet its immediate expenditure obligations.

(d) Any proration or priority payment schedule action taken by the secretary, as identified to the joint committee on finance, shall be effective for no more than a total 30 days in any 6-month period.

(e) The authority granted by this subsection may be exercised only after all other possible procedures have been used and are found to be insufficient, including the temporary reallocation of surplus moneys as provided in section 36 of chapter ... (this act), laws of 1981.

**SECTION 5. 16.53 (11) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:**

16.53 (11) **INTEREST ON DELAYED PAYMENTS.** Payments prorated or delayed under sub. (10) which are payable to local units of government shall accrue interest on the payment delay at the rate equal to the average weekly auction rate for 90-day U.S. treasury bills for each week or portion thereof for which the delay is in effect, or the prior quarter's state investment fund earnings compounded daily, whichever rate is higher.

**SECTION 6. 20.003 (4) of the statutes is created to read:**

20.003 (4) **REQUIRED GENERAL FUND BALANCE.** Beginning with the 1983-85 fiscal biennium, no bill directly or indirectly affecting general purpose revenues as defined in s. 20.001 (2) (a) may be enacted by the legislature if the bill would cause the estimated general fund balance as projected under s. 20.005 (1) to be an amount equal to less than one percent of the total general purpose revenue appropriations for that fiscal biennium.

**SECTION 7. 20.005 (2) (schedule) of the statutes: at the appropriate place, insert the following amounts for the purposes indicated:**

		1979-80	1980-81
<b>20.370</b>	<b>Natural resources, department of</b>		
(4 )	LOCAL SUPPORT		
(kb)	Point source aids - septic tank replacement and rehabilitation	GPR C	-0- -0-
(kc)	Point source aids - pollution abatement grants; general fund	GPR C	-0- -0-
<b>20.855</b>	<b>Miscellaneous appropriations</b>		
(4 )	TAX, INTEREST AND ASSISTANCE		
	PAYMENTS		
(dm)	Interest on allocations to general fund	GPR A	-0- -0-
(u )	Interest on allocations to segregated funds	SEG A	-0- -0-

## CHAPTER 1

4

**20.866 Public debt**

## (2 ) CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

## AUTHORIZATIONS

(tn) Natural resources; pollution abatement and sewage collection facilities	BR C	-0-	136,000,000
--	------	-----	-------------

SECTION 8. 20.370 (1) (ea) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.370 (1) (ea) *Parks — general program operations.* From moneys allocated under sub. (7) (aa), the amounts in the schedule equivalent to the portion of the appropriation under par. (mu) appropriated for the operation of the state parks and state recreation areas under s. 23.091 and ch. 27 less \$2,000 in fiscal year 1980-81 and the remainder of the amounts in the schedule for the operation of the Olympic ice rink under s. 23.35.

SECTION 9. 20.370 (4) (ca) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.370 (4) (ca) *Environmental aids — point source pollution abatement grants.* From the general fund, as a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule for financial assistance under the point source water pollution abatement grant program capital improvement expenditures under s. 144.24. Except in 1980-81, the amount in each year shall equal the amount appropriated in 1978-79 under s. 20.370 (4) (b), 1977 stats., plus 10% compounded annually thereafter, until the beginning of the 1987-88 fiscal year for the purposes specified under s. 20.866 (2) (tn) until the building commission makes funds available under that appropriation.

SECTION 10. 20.370 (4) (ca) of the statutes, as affected by chapter .... (this act), laws of 1981, is repealed.

SECTION 11. 20.370 (4) (cc) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.370 (4) (cc) *Environmental aids — nonpoint source pollution abatement grants.* From the general fund, as a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule for nonpoint source water pollution abatement grants under s. 144.25. The amount in each year beginning in 1981-82 shall equal the amount appropriated in 1980-81 under this paragraph \$2,681,300 plus 10% compounded annually thereafter.

SECTION 12. 20.370 (4) (ja) of the statutes is renumbered 20.370 (4) (ka) and amended to read:

20.370 (4) (ka) (title) *Point source aids — principal repayment and interest; pollution abatement bonds.* From the general fund, a sum sufficient to reimburse s. 20.866 (1) (u) for the payment of principal and interest costs incurred in financing the acquisition, construction, development, enlargement or improvement of point source water pollution abatement facilities and sewage collection facilities under ss. 144.21, 144.23 and 144.24.

SECTION 13. 20.370 (4) (kb) and (kc) of the statutes are created to read:

20.370 (4) (kb) *Point source aids — septic tank replacement and rehabilitation.* As a continuing appropriation from the general fund, the amounts in the schedule for financial assistance under the septic tank replacement and rehabilitation program. Payments may be made from this appropriation for expenditures and for payment of encumbrances authorized under s. 144.24 (10), 1979 stats., and s. 144.245, regardless of when the encumbrances were incurred.

(kc) *Point source aids — pollution abatement grants; general fund.* As a continuing appropriation from the general fund, the amounts in the schedule for financial assistance under the point source water pollution abatement grant program for facility planning, detail design and other eligible costs under s. 144.24 which cannot be funded from bond revenues. Payments may be made from this appropriation for expenditures and for payments of encumbrances authorized for facility planning, detail design and other eligible costs under s. 144.24 which cannot be funded from bond revenues regardless of when the encumbrances were incurred.

SECTION 14. 20.835 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.835 (2) (b) *Personal property tax relief*. The amounts in the schedule to be distributed to towns, villages and cities as provided in s. 79.12, 1973 stats. or s. 79.17 to provide the credits specified under such provisions less that portion allocated to general aid and the municipal and county shared revenue account under s. 79.16. ~~Commencing with the 1978-79~~ For the 1981-82 fiscal year the amounts in the schedule prior to transfers under s. 79.16 shall ~~increase by 8% over the amount in the schedule in the prior year~~ equal \$246,080,900. This appropriation shall terminate after the 1981-82 fiscal year.

SECTION 15. 20.855 (4) (dm) of the statutes is created to read:

20.855 (4) (dm) *Interest on allocations to general fund*. The amounts in the schedule for the payment of interest from the general fund to any segregated fund under section 36 of chapter .... (this act), laws of 1981.

SECTION 16. 20.855 (4) (u) of the statutes is created to read:

20.855 (4) (u) *Interest on allocations to segregated funds*. The amounts in the schedule for the payment of interest from any segregated fund to the general fund under section 36 of chapter .... (this act), laws of 1981.

SECTION 17. 20.866 (2) (tm) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.866 (2) (tm) (title) *Natural resources; pollution abatement and sewage collection facilities, ORAP funding*. As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule to the department of natural resources to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge or improve point source water pollution abatement facilities and sewage collection facilities under ss. 144.21 and 144.23. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$150,850,000~~ \$146,850,000 for this purpose. Of this amount, \$5,000,000 is allocated for point source water pollution abatement facilities and sewage collection facilities under s. 144.23. ~~Of this amount, \$4,000,000 is allocated for point source pollution abatement facilities and sewage collection facilities under s. 144.24.~~

SECTION 18. 20.866 (2) (tn) of the statutes is created to read:

20.866 (2) (tn) *Natural resources; pollution abatement and sewage collection facilities*. As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule to the department of natural resources to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge or improve point source water pollution abatement facilities and sewage collection facilities under s. 144.24. Payments may be made from this appropriation for capital improvement expenditures and for payment of capital improvement encumbrances authorized under s. 144.24 regardless of when encumbrances were incurred. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed \$136,000,000 for this purpose.

SECTION 19. 20.867 (2) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.867 (2) (f) *Facilities maintenance and improvement*. Except for the 1979-81 fiscal biennium, wherein a total of ~~\$19,976,700~~ \$19,518,900 is authorized, a sum sufficient equal to 1.5% of the value of state buildings, structures, utility plants and equipment therein, excepting those under the jurisdiction of the department of transportation, as appraised by the department of administration in accordance with s. 13.48 (3), for the purposes of carrying out the long-range building program under s. 13.48. The amounts provided under this paragraph shall be transferred to the appropriation made by par. (x) to carry out the purposes of that paragraph. Notwithstanding s. 20.001 (3) (b), all amounts thus transferred and all prior appropriations made under the authority of this paragraph are nonlapsing.

SECTION 21. 49.19 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

CHAPTER 1

49.19 (4) (b) The person applying for aid has allowed the county agent 15 to 30 days to process his application and, if not already a resident of the county, has notified the agency of his intent to establish residence in the county. Payments of aid to eligible individuals will not be retroactive beyond the first of the month in which eligibility is established. The effective date of eligibility for aid to eligible individuals is the date the applicant submits a signed and completed application to the county department of public welfare or social services, or the first date on which the applicant meets all of the eligibility criteria, whichever is later.

SECTION 22. 70.996 (1) (a) 3 of the statutes is amended to read:

70.996 (1) (a) 3. For the 1981 distribution under this section the adjusted base amount shall equal \$54,962,000 \$53,752,800.

~~SECTION 23. 70.996 (1) (a) 4 of the statutes is created to read:~~

~~70.996 (1) (a) 4. For the 1982 distribution under this section the adjusted base amount shall equal \$54,962,000 multiplied by a decimal equal to one plus the percentage increase in the state general fund tax collections in fiscal year 1981-82 over the prior fiscal year, subject to s. 79.03 (4) (d) and within the limits of 1.05 and 1.12.~~

~~SECTION 24. 79.02 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:~~

~~79.02 (2) (c) Beginning on June 30, 1978 July 1, 1981, and annually thereafter, \$90,000,000 shall be entered from the general fund into the shared revenue account for the preliminary distribution prescribed under this subsection.~~

~~SECTION 25. 79.03 (4) (g) of the statutes is created to read:~~

~~79.03 (4) (g) In 1982 the total amount to be distributed under this subchapter, except amounts distributed under s. 79.06 and transferred under s. 79.16 (3), shall be \$413,000,000 multiplied by a decimal equal to one plus the percentage increase in the state general fund tax collection in fiscal year 1980-81 over the previous fiscal year, within the limits of 1.05 and 1.12, multiplied by a decimal equal to one plus the percentage increase in the state general fund tax collections in fiscal year 1981-82 over the previous fiscal year, within the limits of 1.05 and 1.12.~~

SECTION 26. 79.20 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.20 (1) (b) In 1981, ~~80%~~ 78.24%.

~~SECTION 27. 85.035 of the statutes is amended to read:~~

~~85.035 Reduction of department appropriations. Where the secretary deems that economic conditions warrant, the secretary, in conjunction with submission of quarterly estimates under s. 16.50, may recommend to the secretary of administration that authorized department appropriations be reduced to reflect revenue deficiencies.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 28. 144.24 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

144.24 (1) LEGISLATIVE INTENT. The legislature finds that state financial assistance for the planning, design, engineering and construction of point source pollution abatement facilities is a public purpose and a proper state government function in that the state is the trustee of the waters of the state and that such this financial assistance is necessary to protect the purity of state waters. In order that the planning, design, engineering and construction of point source pollution abatement facilities necessary to the protection of state waters be encouraged, a state program of assistance to municipalities for the financing of such these facilities is established. The legislature further finds that in order for the construction of point source pollution abatement facilities to proceed in an expeditious manner it is appropriate to meet the costs through the issuance of public debt, extending the financial obligation incurred over a generation of beneficiaries of these facilities.

SECTION 29. 144.24 (4) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

144.24 (4) (c) 1. Every applicant seeking grants for construction purposes under this section shall complete a staged planning, design and environmental analysis sequence developed by the department. The department shall model the required sequence after the staged planning, design and environmental analysis sequence under title II of the federal act. ~~In cases where~~

2. If sources of funding for the ~~facility planning and design~~ prescribed under this paragraph are not available for ~~such these~~ activities, grants provided under this section may pay 75% of the cost of ~~such facility planning and design~~.

SECTION 30. 144.24 (4) (c) 3 of the statutes is created to read:

144.24 (4) (c) 3. If sources of funding for the engineering design prescribed under this paragraph are not available for these activities, grants provided under this section may pay 75% of the cost of engineering design activities.

SECTION 31. 144.24 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

144.24 (7) PAYMENT. Upon the completion by an applicant of all application requirements, the department may enter into an agreement with a municipality for a grant of up to 60% of the eligible costs of a project, except as provided in sub. (4) (c). No project funded under this section may receive state assistance that, combined with other nonlocal government assistance, exceeds 75% of the eligible cost of the project. Metropolitan sewerage districts that serve 1st class cities of the first class shall be are limited annually in each fiscal year to receiving total grant awards not to exceed 33% of the state funding appropriated annually under this section sum of the amounts in the schedule for that fiscal year for the appropriations under ss. 20.370 (4) (kb) and (kc) and 20.866 (2) (tn) plus the unencumbered balances at the end of the preceding fiscal year for those appropriations.

SECTION 32. 144.24 (9) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

144.24 (9) (c) The maximum amount of state assistance the department may commit in each fiscal year for future reimbursement is 110% of the ~~current year's appropriation for point source pollution grants~~ sum of the amounts in the schedule for that fiscal year for the appropriations under ss. 20.370 (4) (kc) and 20.866 (2) (tn).

SECTION 33. 144.24 (10) of the statutes is renumbered 144.245, and 144.245 (1) (intro.), (2), (3), (5) to (8), (9) (intro.) and (a), (11), (12) (a) to (c) and (14) (a) (intro.), (c) and (d), as renumbered, are amended to read:

144.245 (1) (intro.) DEFINITIONS. In this ~~subsection~~ section:

(2) RULES. The department may not promulgate a rule under this ~~subsection~~ section until the proposed rule is approved by the department of industry, labor and human relations. A rule promulgated under this ~~subsection~~ section without the approval of the department of industry, labor and human relations is void.

(3) MAINTENANCE. The department shall establish a maintenance program to be administered by the governmental units responsible for the regulation of private sewage systems, as defined under s. 145.01 (15), ~~under this subsection~~, applicable to all new or replacement private sewage systems constructed in governmental units which receive a grant under this ~~subsection~~ section. The maintenance program shall include a requirement of inspection or pumping of the private sewage system at least once every 3 years. Inspections may be conducted by a master plumber, journeyman plumber or restricted plumber licensed under ch. 145, a person licensed under s. 146.20 or by an employe of the state or governmental unit designated by the department. The department may suspend or revoke a license issued under s. 146.20 if the department finds that the licensee falsified information on inspection forms. The department of industry, labor and human relations may suspend or revoke the license of a plumber licensed under ch. 145 if the department

## CHAPTER 1

8

of industry, labor and human relations finds that the plumber falsified information on inspection forms.

(5) **ELIGIBILITY; PRIORITY.** (a) A failing private sewage system serving one or more principal residences or small commercial establishments constructed prior to and inhabited on July 1, 1978, is eligible for grant funds under this subsection section if an enforcement order ~~has been~~ was issued under s. 144.025 (2) (d), 145.02 (3) (f) or 145.20 (2) (f) or an enforcement order ~~has been~~ under s. 146.13 was issued by a governmental unit responsible for the regulation of private sewage systems, as defined under s. 145.01 (15), ~~under s. 146.13~~. A private sewage system subject to an enforcement order is eligible for grant funds during the 3-year period after the order is issued, if the application is submitted and work is completed within 12 months after the order is issued. Grant funds may be awarded after work is completed if rehabilitation or replacement of the system meets all requirements of this subsection section and rules promulgated under this subsection section. After receiving a grant application, unless a grant is awarded, the department shall include the private sewage system on the priority list until the end of the 3-year period after the order is issued.

(b) Each principal residence or small commercial establishment may receive only one grant under this subsection section.

(6) **USE OF FUNDS.** Funds available under a grant under this subsection section shall be applied to the rehabilitation or replacement of the private domestic sewage system. An existing private sewage system may be replaced by an alternative sewage system or by a system serving more than one principal residence.

(7) **ALLOWABLE COSTS.** (a) Costs allowable in determining grant funding under this subsection section may not exceed the costs of rehabilitating or replacing a private sewage system which would be necessary to allow the rehabilitated system or new system to meet the minimum requirements of the state plumbing code promulgated under s. 145.13.

(b) Costs allowable in determining grant funding under this subsection section may not exceed the costs of rehabilitating or replacing a private sewage system by the least costly methods.

(8) **APPLICATION.** In order to be eligible for a grant under this subsection section a governmental unit responsible for the regulation of private sewage systems, as defined under s. 145.01 (15), shall make an application for replacement or rehabilitation of private sewage systems of principal residences or small commercial establishments.

(9) (intro.) **CONDITIONS; GOVERNMENTAL UNITS.** As a condition for obtaining a grant under this subsection section, a governmental unit responsible for the regulation of private sewage systems, as defined under s. 145.01 (15), making an application shall:

(a) Certify that grants will be used for private sewage systems which meet the eligibility requirements under ~~par. (e) sub. (5)~~, that the funds will be used as provided under ~~par. (f) sub. (6)~~ and that allowable costs will not exceed the amount permitted under ~~par. (g) sub. (7)~~;

(11) **PRIORITY.** The department shall establish a funding priority list separate from the funding priority list established under ~~sub. s. 144.24~~ (6) for the purposes of distributing grant funds under this subsection section. The funding priority list shall give a higher rank to projects which alleviate greater potential or actual harm to public health and water quality.

(12) (a) A governmental unit responsible for the regulation of private sewage systems, as defined under s. 145.01 (15), which desires to participate in the financial assistance program under this subsection section shall submit an application for participation to the department. The application shall be in the form and include the information the department prescribes. The department shall review applications for participation in the state program. It shall determine those applications which meet the criteria it established

under ~~par. (i)~~ sub. (9). Applications must be received by the department no later than January 1 of any year for consideration in that fiscal year.

(b) Funds available for grants under this ~~subsection~~ section are limited to ~~3%~~ of the point source appropriation under s. 20.370 (4) ~~(ea)~~ (kb) in any year plus any available funds from a previous year and may be expended until fully depleted.

(c) The state grant share under this ~~subsection~~ section for any private sewage system and the cost of its installation shall be limited to \$3,000 for each principal resident or small commercial establishment served or 60% of the total project cost, whichever is less. The total share for each principal residence owner or small commercial establishment owner shall not be less than 25% of the total costs of the project attributable to that principal resident or small commercial establishment.

(14) (a) (intro.) If the department has reason to believe that a violation of this ~~subsection~~ section or any rule promulgated under this ~~subsection~~ section has occurred, it may:

(c) Enforcement of this ~~subsection~~ section shall follow the procedures under s. 144.98.

(d) Additional grants under this ~~subsection~~ section to a governmental unit responsible for the regulation of private sewage systems, as defined under s. 145.01 (15), previously awarded a grant under this ~~subsection~~ section may be suspended or terminated if the department finds that a private sewage system previously funded in the governmental unit is not being or has not been properly installed or maintained.

SECTION 34. 144.24 (10) of the statutes is created to read:

144.24 (10) APPROPRIATION INCREASES. The total of the amounts in the schedule for the appropriations under ss. 20.370 (4) (kb) and (kc) and 20.866 (2) (tn) in each fiscal year beginning in 1981-82 up to and including 1987-88 shall equal \$79,860,000 plus 10% compounded annually thereafter.

SECTION 36. **Temporary authority for reallocation of balances between funds and accounts.** Notwithstanding sections 20.002 (11) and 20.903 (1) of the statutes, for the period between February 1, 1981, and June 30, 1981, or the day following publication of the 1981-83 executive budget act, whichever is later, the secretary of administration may, in the event that he or she anticipates that vouchers for payments from any fund or account will be in excess of available revenues in the fund or account, temporarily reallocate available balances between funds and accounts as follows:

(1) All appropriations, special accounts and fund balances within the general fund or any segregated fund may be made temporarily available until the end of the fiscal year for the purpose of allowing encumbrances or financing expenditures of other general or segregated fund activities which do not have sufficient moneys in the accounts from which they are financed but have accounts receivable balances or moneys anticipated to be received from tax revenues, gifts, grants, fees, sales of service, or interest earnings before the close of the fiscal year recorded under section 16.52 (2) of the statutes. The secretary of administration shall determine the composition and allowability of the accounts receivable balances and anticipated moneys to be received for this purpose in accordance with section 20.903 (2) of the statutes and shall specifically approve the use of surplus moneys from the general or segregated funds after consultation with the appropriate agency head for use by specified accounts or programs.

(2) The secretary shall limit the amount of any temporary reallocation to \$100 million and the reallocation shall be reversed as soon as balances allow or within 90 days or by the close of the fiscal year, whichever is earlier. The secretary may assess a special interest charge against the programs or activities utilizing surplus moneys within the same fund under this subsection in an amount not to exceed the daily interest earnings rate of the state investment fund during the period of transfer of surplus moneys to other accounts or programs. The secretary shall assess a special interest charge against the fund utilizing

CHAPTER 1

surplus moneys under subsection (1) in an amount equal to the rate of return the state investment fund earnings would have created to the fund from which the reallocation was made. This interest shall be calculated and credited to the appropriate fund at the same time the earnings from the state investment fund are distributed and shall be considered an adjustment to those earnings.

(3) This section applies only to those funds participating in the investment fund for purposes of temporary reallocation between funds or accounts and does not include the following funds or specified accounts in these funds:

- (a) The bond security and redemption fund under section 18.09 of the statutes.
- (b) The capital improvement fund under section 18.08 of the statutes.
- (c) The industrial building construction loan fund under section 560.10 of the statutes.
- (d) All trust funds authorized under chapters 40, 41 and 42 of the statutes.
- (e) The veterans trust fund under section 25.36 of the statutes.
- (f) The state housing authority reserve fund under section 25.41 of the statutes.
- (g) The fish and wildlife account within the conservation fund under section 25.29 of the statutes.

(4) The secretary may not exercise the authority granted in this section if a temporary reallocation would jeopardize the cash flow of any fund or account from which a temporary reallocation would be made.

(5) If the secretary exercises or proposes to exercise the authority granted in this section, he or she shall publish and transmit a report to the presiding officer of each house of the legislature on a monthly basis specifying the date, amount, source and use of any outstanding temporary reallocation or proposed reallocation of moneys for the period covered by the report.

**SECTION 37. Wisconsin fund revisions.** (1) Notwithstanding section 144.24 (7) of the statutes, as amended by this act, the total grant awards under section 144.24 of the statutes that may be made to metropolitan sewerage districts that serve 1st class cities for fiscal year 1980-81 shall not exceed 33% of the sum of the 1980-81 appropriation amount under section 20.370 (4) (ca) of the statutes, the ending unencumbered balance in fiscal year 1979-80 of the appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (ca) of the statutes and the bonding authorization amount allocated under section 20.866 (2) (tm), 1979 stats., for point source pollution abatement grants under section 144.24 of the statutes.

(2) Notwithstanding section 144.24 (9) (c) of the statutes, as amended by this act, the amount of state assistance that the department of natural resources may commit in fiscal year 1980-81 for future reimbursement under section 144.24 of the statutes is limited to 110% of the sum of the fiscal year 1980-81 appropriation amount under section 20.370 (4) (ca) of the statutes and the bonding authorization amount allocated under section 20.866 (2) (tm), 1979 stats., for point source pollution abatement grants under section 144.24 of the statutes.

**SECTION 38. Shared revenue adjustments.** (1) Notwithstanding section 79.02 (2) (c) of the statutes, ~~as amended by this act,~~ the amount entered into the shared revenue account on ~~July 1,~~ 1981, for purposes of the preliminary distribution under section 79.02 of the statutes shall be \$79,469,400. The preliminary distribution to each municipality and county in 1981 under section 79.02 of the statutes shall be equal to the difference between the amounts under paragraphs (a) and (b).

(a) The 1981 payment under section 79.02 of the statutes as computed without any modifications under this subsection and under subsections (2) and (3) ~~and as if \$90,000,000 were entered into the shared revenue account.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

Vetoed  
in Part

(b) An amount equal to 2.2% of the municipality's or county's combined payments in 1980 under section 79.02, 79.03, 79.04 and 79.06 of the statutes and payments distributed under section 79.03 of the statutes from funds transferred under section 79.16 (3) of the statutes.

(c) If the amount under paragraph (b) is more than the amount under paragraph (a), the preliminary distribution is zero. If the amount in the shared revenue account is insufficient to make the preliminary distribution under this section, each municipality and county shall share in the amount then in the shared revenue account in proportion to its payments under this section computed as if there was sufficient money in the shared revenue account.

(2) For purposes of the November 1981 distribution under section 79.03 (1) of the statutes "the amount distributed in July of that year under s. 79.02" means the amount of the preliminary distribution computed without any modification under this subsection and subsections (1) and (3) ~~and computed as if \$90,000,000 were entered in the shared revenue account.~~ **Vetoed in Part**

(3) Notwithstanding section 79.03 (4) (c) of the statutes, in 1981, the total amount to be distributed under subchapter I of chapter 79 of the statutes, except section 79.06 of the statutes and the amount transferred under section 79.16 (3) of the statutes is the amount determined under section 79.03 (4) (c) of the statutes minus \$10,530,600.

**SECTION 38g. Fire department dues adjustments.** If there are insufficient funds in the appropriation under section 20.835 (4) (b) of the statutes in fiscal year 1980-81 to make the payments to cities, villages and towns under sections 601.93 and 601.95 of the statutes, cities, villages and towns shall share in the amount of the reduction in proportion to their share of payments under those sections computed as if sufficient funds were available.

**SECTION 38r. County assessment aids adjustment.** For fiscal year 1980-81, payments under section 70.99 (12) of the statutes are reduced by 2.2%.

**SECTION 39. Payment of 1980-81 school aids.** (1) For school aids paid in fiscal year 1980-81, the sum of aids computed under sections 121.08, 121.085, 121.10, 121.11 and 121.85 of the statutes shall be reduced by 3% for each school district receiving any such aid.

(2) For the payment of state aid in fiscal year 1980-81, aid computed under sections 115.53 (1) and 146.36, 115.88 and 118.255, 115.92, 115.995, 116.01 and 116.08, 121.58 and 121.79 of the statutes shall be reduced by 3%.

(3) By July 10, 1981, the department of public instruction shall notify each school board receiving state aid under any of the sections of the statutes enumerated under subsections (1) and (2) of the difference between aid payments for fiscal year 1980-81, as of June 30, 1981, and 98.55% of these amounts, which should represent the additional aid payments received by each school district due to the enactment of a 3%, rather than a 4.4% factor, for the reduction of state aid payments to school districts in fiscal year 1980-81.

(4) The difference determined under subsection (3) shall not be expended by the school board for any purpose in the 1980-81 school year, consistent with the requirements of subsection (5).

(5) If a school board receives notification under subsection (3), it shall direct each appropriate municipal clerk to reduce the 1981 property tax levy for the school district by the difference determined under subsection (3) and inform the residents of the school district of this levy reduction through publication of a class 1 notice under chapter 985 of the statutes and through the school district's annual meeting if the school district holds an annual meeting.

## CHAPTER 1

12

(6) Within 30 days of the effective date of this section, the department of public instruction shall notify each school board of the provisions of this section.

**SECTION 40. Appropriation changes.** (1) On February 1, 1981, or on the day following publication of this act, whichever is later, there is transferred to the appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (kb) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, from the appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (ca) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, in fiscal year 1980-81 the unencumbered and encumbered portions of the amounts set aside under section 144.24 (10) (L) 2, 1979 stats., to provide funding for the septic tank replacement and rehabilitation program.

(2) On February 1, 1981, or on the day following publication of this act, whichever is later, there is transferred to the appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (kc) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, from the appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (ca) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, an amount equal to all outstanding encumbrances payable from the appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (ca) of the statutes for facility planning, detail design and other eligible costs incurred under section 144.24 of the statutes which cannot be funded from bond revenues and, in addition, \$3,000,000 in fiscal year 1980-81 to provide funding for facility planning, detail design and other eligible costs under section 144.24 of the statutes which cannot be funded from bond revenues.

(3) On June 29, 1981, an amount equal to the amount expended for capital improvement expenditures under section 144.24 of the statutes from the appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (ca) of the statutes between February 1, 1981, or the day following publication of this act, whichever is later, and June 29, 1981, is transferred to the appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (ca), as affected by the laws of 1981, from the appropriation under section 20.866 (2) (tn) of the statutes.

**SECTION 41. Appropriation lapse.** Upon the repeal of section 20.370 (4) (ca) of the statutes by this act, the unexpended balances in that appropriation lapse to the general fund.

**SECTION 42. General appropriation decreases.**

(1) ADMINISTRATION.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.505 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$575,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.505 (1) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$9,900 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(c) The appropriation under section 20.505 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$19,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(d) The appropriation under section 20.505 (2) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(e) The appropriation under section 20.505 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(f) The appropriation under section 20.505 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$17,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(g) The appropriation under section 20.505 (5) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$5,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(h) The appropriation under section 20.505 (5) (cc) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$3,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(i) The appropriation under section 20.505 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$8,900 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(2) AGING, BOARD ON.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.430 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(3) AGRICULTURE, TRADE AND CONSUMER PROTECTION.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.115 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$183,900 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.115 (1) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$129,900 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(c) The appropriation under section 20.115 (1) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$49,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(d) The appropriation under section 20.115 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$158,900 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(e) The appropriation under section 20.115 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$54,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(f) The appropriation under section 20.115 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$1,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(g) The appropriation under section 20.115 (4) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$16,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(h) The appropriation under section 20.115 (4) (e) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(i) The appropriation under section 20.115 (6) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$8,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(j) The appropriation under section 20.115 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(4) ARTS BOARD.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.215 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$10,500 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.215 (1) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$22,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(6) BUILDING COMMISSION.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.867 (2) (f) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$457,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(10) DEVELOPMENT.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.143 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$187,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.143 (1) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$4,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(c) The appropriation under section 20.143 (2) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$25,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(d) The appropriation under section 20.143 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$20,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(e) The appropriation under section 20.143 (3) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$8,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(f) The appropriation under section 20.143 (3) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(g) The appropriation under section 20.143 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$4,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

## CHAPTER 1

14

(h) The appropriation under section 20.143 (4) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$8,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(i) The appropriation under section 20.143 (4) (f) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$16,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(j) The appropriation under section 20.143 (5) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$5,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(11) EDUCATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS BOARD.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.225 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$121,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.225 (1) (f) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$68,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(12) ELECTIONS BOARD.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.510 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$14,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(13) EMPLOYE TRUST FUNDS.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.515 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(14) EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS COMMISSION.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.425 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$67,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(15) EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS DEPARTMENT.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.512 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$147,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.512 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$500 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(16) ETHICS BOARD.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.521 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$4,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(17) EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATION.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.525 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$11,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.525 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$11,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(c) The appropriation under section 20.525 (4) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$3,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(d) The appropriation under section 20.525 (4) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$3,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(18) EXECUTIVE PROGRAMS.

(a) *Council on criminal justice.* The appropriation under section 20.530 (2) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$20,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) *Conservation works projects board.* The appropriation under section 20.530 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$3,500 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(19) GREAT LAKES COMPACT COMMISSION.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.325 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$1,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

## (20) HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES.

- (a) The appropriation under section 20.435 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$943,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (b) The appropriation under section 20.435 (1) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$13,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (c) The appropriation under section 20.435 (1) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$14,500 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (d) The appropriation under section 20.435 (1) (fm) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (e) The appropriation under section 20.435 (1) (fn) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$17,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (f) The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$1,785,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (g) The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$4,461,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (h) The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (bb) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,426,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (i) The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (bd) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$4,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (j) The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$364,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (k) The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (cc) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$5,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (L) The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (cd) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$344,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (m) The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (dd) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$105,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (n) The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (de) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$3,500 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (o) The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (df) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$275,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (p) The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (fm) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,500 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (q) The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$3,363,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (r) The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (aa) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$12,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (s) The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$152,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (t) The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$93,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (u) The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (dd) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$50,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (v) The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$173,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.
- (w) The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (db) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$330,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

## CHAPTER 1

16

(x) The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (dc) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$4,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(y) The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (de) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$608,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(z) The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (dL) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$35,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(za) The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (ed) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$1,354,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(zb) The appropriation under section 20.435 (5) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$195,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(zc) The appropriation under section 20.435 (5) (bm) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$254,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(zf) The appropriation under section 20.435 (7) (e) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$3,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(zm) The appropriation under section 20.435 (7) (ea) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$51,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(zp) The appropriation under section 20.435 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$547,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(zt) The appropriation under section 20.435 (8) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$44,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(22) HIGHER EDUCATIONAL AIDS BOARD.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.235 (1) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$226,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.235 (1) (fe) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$501,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(23) HISTORICAL SOCIETY.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.245 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$166,500 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.245 (1) (fa) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$7,900 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(25) INDUSTRY, LABOR AND HUMAN RELATIONS.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.445 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$274,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.445 (1) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$30,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(c) The appropriation under section 20.445 (1) (cm) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$20,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(d) The appropriation under section 20.445 (1) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$17,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(e) The appropriation under section 20.445 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$7,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(26) INSURANCE.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.145 (7) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(30) JUDICIAL COMMISSION.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.665 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$1,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.665 (1) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$5,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(31) JUDICIAL COUNCIL.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.645 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$4,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(32) JUSTICE.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.455 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$132,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.455 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$393,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(c) The appropriation under section 20.455 (2) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(d) The appropriation under section 20.455 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$53,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(e) The appropriation under section 20.455 (6) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$26,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(f) The appropriation under section 20.455 (6) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$8,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(33) LEGISLATURE.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.765 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$4,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.765 (2) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(c) The appropriation under section 20.765 (2) (ca) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$1,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(d) The appropriation under section 20.765 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$3,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(e) The appropriation under section 20.765 (3) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$50,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(f) The appropriation under section 20.765 (3) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$77,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(g) The appropriation under section 20.765 (3) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$44,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(h) The appropriation under section 20.765 (3) (e) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$45,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(35) MEDICAL COLLEGE OF WISCONSIN.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.250 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$193,500 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.250 (1) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$31,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(36) MILITARY AFFAIRS.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.465 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$69,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.465 (1) (e) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(c) The appropriation under section 20.465 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

## CHAPTER 1

18

## (37) MINNESOTA-WISCONSIN BOUNDARY AREA COMMISSION.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.315 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

## (38) NATURAL RESOURCES.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (ea) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (fa) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(c) The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (kb) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$230,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(d) The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (ma) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$45,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(e) The appropriation under section 20.370 (2) (ab) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$7,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(f) The appropriation under section 20.370 (2) (ac) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(g) The appropriation under section 20.370 (2) (ma) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$441,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(h) The appropriation under section 20.370 (3) (ma) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$56,500 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(i) The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (aa) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$50,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(j) The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (ba) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$43,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(k) The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (be) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$5,500 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(L) The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (ca) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$3,018,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(m) The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (cb) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$3,500 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(n) The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (cc) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$107,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(o) The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (ce) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$7,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(p) The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (cf) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$22,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(q) The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (da) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$4,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(r) The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (fc) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$7,900 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(s) The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (hb) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$38,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(t) The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (ia) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$20,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(u) The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (ib) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$20,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(v) The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (ic) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$1,900 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(w) The appropriation under section 20.370 (8) (eb) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$8,900 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(x) The appropriation under section 20.370 (8) (ma) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$101,500 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(39) PERSONNEL BOARD.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.546 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$1,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(40) PERSONNEL COMMISSION.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.547 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$16,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(41) PUBLIC DEFENDER BOARD.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.550 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$10,900 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.550 (1) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$11,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(c) The appropriation under section 20.550 (1) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$262,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(d) The appropriation under section 20.550 (1) (e) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$3,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(42) PUBLIC INSTRUCTION.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$304,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (bb) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$489,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(c) The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (bc) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$1,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(d) The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (bd) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$611,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(e) The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (cc) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$21,709,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(g) The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (ch) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$43,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(h) The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (cj) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$4,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(i) The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (dd) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$20,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(j) The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (fg) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$46,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(k) The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (fn) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$1,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(L) The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (fq) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(n) The appropriation under section 20.255 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$234,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(o) The appropriation under section 20.255 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$75,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

## CHAPTER 1

20

(p) The appropriation under section 20.255 (3) (ab) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$14,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(q) The appropriation under section 20.255 (3) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(r) The appropriation under section 20.255 (3) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$201,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(44) REGULATION AND LICENSING.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.165 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$9,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(45) REVENUE.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.566 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$701,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.566 (1) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$75,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(c) The appropriation under section 20.566 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$318,900 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(d) The appropriation under section 20.566 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$484,500 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(e) The appropriation under section 20.566 (7) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$1,900 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(47) SECRETARY OF STATE.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.575 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$28,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(48) SECURITIES.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.185 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$38,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(49) SOLID WASTE RECYCLING AUTHORITY.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.398 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$15,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(52) TREASURER.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.585 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$16,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(53) UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$13,904,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (ab) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$147,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(c) The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$81,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(d) The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (fa) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$108,700 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(e) The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (fc) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$106,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(f) The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (fd) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$106,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(54) UPPER GREAT LAKES REGIONAL COMMISSION.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.590 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$3,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(55) VETERANS AFFAIRS.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.485 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$39,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.485 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(56) VOCATIONAL, TECHNICAL AND ADULT EDUCATION.

(a) The appropriation under section 20.292 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$69,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) The appropriation under section 20.292 (1) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(c) The appropriation under section 20.292 (1) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,548,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(d) The appropriation under section 20.292 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,600 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(57) OTHER.

(a) *Miscellaneous appropriations.* 1. The appropriation under section 20.855 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$20,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

2. The appropriation under section 20.855 (4) (am) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$3,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

3. The appropriation under section 20.855 (4) (ao) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$132,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

4. The appropriation under section 20.855 (4) (e) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$307,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

5. The appropriation under section 20.855 (9) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,900 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) *Program supplements.* 1. The appropriation under section 20.865 (2) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$2,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

2. The appropriation under section 20.865 (2) (e) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$87,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

3. The appropriation under section 20.865 (2) (eb) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$1,200 in fiscal year 1980-81.

4. The appropriation under section 20.865 (2) (em) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is decreased by \$14,400 in fiscal year 1980-81.

**SECTION 43. General limitation upon disbursements from general purpose revenue sum sufficient appropriations.** (1) Notwithstanding section 20.001 (3) (d) and subchapters II to IX of chapter 20 of the statutes, disbursements from general purpose revenue sum sufficient appropriations for the 1980-81 fiscal year may not exceed the amounts shown in the schedule under section 20.005 of the 1979 statutes, as published by the revisor of statutes, except as provided in subsection (2) and SECTIONS 45 and 46 of this act.

(2) The limitation imposed under subsection (1) does not apply to the appropriations under sections 20.225 (1) (c), 20.245 (1) (e), 20.250 (1) (e), 20.255 (1) (cd) and (2) (c), 20.285 (1) (d) and (da), 20.370 (1) (kc) and (kd), (4) (ja) and (jb) and (8) (Lb), 20.435 (1) (b), (2) (ee) and (ef), (3) (e) and (ef) and (4) (d) and (e), 20.465 (1) (c) and (d), 20.485 (1) (e) and (f) and (3) (b) and (e), 20.625, 20.660, 20.680, 20.765, 20.835 (1) (bb) and (2) (c) and (dm), 20.865 (1) (d) and (2) (a) and 20.867

(1) (a) and (3) (a) and (b) of the statutes or any other appropriation from which state debt service costs are financed.

**SECTION 44. Special appropriation changes.**

(20) HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES.

(a) *Tuberculosis sanatoria aids.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (1) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981 and by SECTION 42 of this act, is decreased by \$156,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) *Emergency fuel aids.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (dL) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981 and by SECTION 42 of this act, is decreased by \$159,300 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(c) *SSI supplements.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (ed) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981 and by SECTION 42 of this act, is decreased by \$111,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(22) HIGHER EDUCATIONAL AIDS BOARD.

(a) *Wisconsin higher education grants.* The appropriation under section 20.235 (1) (fe) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981 and by SECTION 42 of this act, is decreased by \$2,644,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(41) PUBLIC DEFENDER BOARD.

(a) *Private bar reimbursements.* The appropriation under section 20.550 (1) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981 is increased by \$800,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(42) PUBLIC INSTRUCTION.

(a) *Tuition payments.* The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (cf) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is increased by \$71,100 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(b) *Special adjustment aids.* The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (fs) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981, is increased by \$2,039,800 in fiscal year 1980-81.

(57) OTHER.

(a) *Miscellaneous appropriations; payments for municipal services.* The appropriation under section 20.855 (4) (e) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1981 and by SECTION 42 of this act, is decreased by \$1,100,000 in fiscal year 1980-81.

**SECTION 45. Special appropriation reestimates; sum sufficient appropriations.** Notwithstanding SECTIONS 43 (1) and 46 of this act, the secretary of administration may authorize an expenditure to be made from a general purpose revenue sum sufficient appropriation under section 16.50 of the statutes in an amount which exceeds the amount authorized in SECTIONS 43 (1) and 46 of this act if the secretary approves a reduction in expenditure authority from the amount in any general purpose revenue appropriation under section 16.50 of the statutes of at least the same amount in a general purpose revenue appropriation within the same state agency, as defined in section 20.001 (1) of the statutes. This section does not apply to the appropriations enumerated in SECTION 43 (2) of this act. This section does not apply after June 30, 1981, or the date of publication of the 1981-83 budget act, whichever is later.

**SECTION 46. Special limitation on disbursements from sum sufficient appropriations.** Notwithstanding section 20.001 (3) (d) and subchapters II to IX of chapter 20 of the statutes and SECTION 43 of this act, disbursements from the sum sufficient appropriations for the 1980-81 fiscal year identified in column A may not exceed the amounts shown in column B, except as provided in SECTION 45 of this act:

	<u>Column A</u>	<u>Column B</u>
(1) ADMINISTRATION.		
(a)	20.505 (3)(b)	\$28,700
(3) AGRICULTURE, TRADE AND		

	CONSUMER PROTECTION.		
	(a)	20.115 (2)(b)	\$80,300
(13)	EMPLOYE TRUST FUNDS.		
	(a)	20.515 (1)(a)	\$8,670,000
(17)	EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATION.		
	(a)	20.525 (1)(a)	\$984,500
	(b)	20.525 (1)(c)	\$44,400
	(c)	20.525 (2)(a)	\$122,000
(20)	HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES.		
	(a)	20.435 (1)(bm)	\$4,126,100
	(b)	20.435 (1)(dm)	\$94,600
	(c)	20.435 (1)(e)	\$1,000,000
	(d)	20.435 (2)(d)	\$385,600
	(e)	20.435 (2)(e)	\$426,800
	(f)	20.435 (3)(c)	\$54,500
	(g)	20.435 (3)(f)	\$3,775,100
(22)	HIGHER EDUCATIONAL AIDS BOARD.		
	(a)	20.235 (1)(b)	\$10,308,500
	(b)	20.235 (1)(c)	\$384,300
	(c)	20.235 (1)(fb)	\$860,400
(25)	INDUSTRY, LABOR AND HUMAN RELATIONS.		
	(a)	20.445 (1)(e)	\$1,309,700
(32)	JUSTICE.		
	(a)	20.455 (5)(b)	\$1,463,300
(36)	MILITARY AFFAIRS.		
	(a)	20.465 (1)(f)	\$1,066,800
(38)	NATURAL RESOURCES.		
	(a)	20.370 (4)(ea)	\$538,200
(42)	PUBLIC INSTRUCTION.		
	(a)	20.255 (1)(fe)	\$4,428,100
	(c)	20.255 (1)(fk)	\$2,827,900
	(d)	20.255 (1)(fo)	\$1,843,000
	(e)	20.255 (2)(b)	\$451,900
(45)	REVENUE.		
	(a)	20.566 (3)(b)	\$600
(53)	UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM.		
	(a)	20.285 (1)(c)	\$28,684,600
(55)	VETERANS AFFAIRS.		
	(a)	20.485 (1)(c)	\$519,200
	(b)	20.485 (2)(c)	\$479,300
(57)	OTHER.		
	(a) Shared taxes.		
	1.	20.835 (4)(b)	\$4,205,400
	(am) Miscellaneous appropriations.		
	1.	20.855 (4)(c)	\$9,386,000
	2.	20.855 (4)(f)	\$476,300
	(b) Program supplements.		
	1.	20.865 (1)(c)	\$15,429,400
	2.	20.865 (1)(ci)	\$32,854,800
	3.	20.865 (1)(cm)	\$28,657,900
	4.	20.865 (1)(f)	\$928,200
	5.	20.865 (1)(fm)	\$1,051,600
	6.	20.865 (3)(b)	\$465,900

**SECTION 47. Cross-reference changes.** In the sections of the statutes listed in Column A, the cross-references shown in Column B are changed to the cross-references shown in Column C:

A	B	C
Statute Sections	Old Cross-References	New Cross-References
15.221 (intro.)	144.24 (10)	144.245
20.866 (1)(u)	20.370 (1)(kc), (4) (ja) and (jb) and (8)(Lb) and (Ls)	20.370 (1)(kc), (4) (jb) and (ka) and (8)(Lb) and (Ls)
145.10 (1)(c)	144.24 (10)(c)	144.245 (3)
146.20 (5)(d)	144.24 (10)(c)	144.245 (3)

CHAPTER 1

24

**SECTION 48. Effective dates.** (1) The amendment of section 20.370 (4) (ca) of the statutes and the treatment of sections 20.370 (4) (ja), (kb) and (kc), 20.866 (2) (tm) and (tn) and 144.24 (1), (4) (c), (7) and (10) of the statutes by this act take effect on February 1, 1981, or on the day following publication, whichever is later.

(2) The repeal of section 20.370 (4) (ca) of the statutes by this act takes effect on June 30, 1981.

(3) The treatment of section 49.19 (4) (b) of the statutes by this act takes effect on April 1, 1981.

---

1981 Senate Bill 117

Date published: February 21, 1981

CHAPTER 2 , Laws of 1981

AN ACT to repeal 227.01 (11) (h); and to create 227.01 (11) (h) of the statutes, relating to rule-making authority and management, discipline or release of persons committed to the department of health and social services or placed on probation.

*The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:*

**SECTION 1. Legislative findings.** The legislature finds that:

(1) The department of health and social services has control over probationers and parolees which is based primarily on sections 46.03 (6) (c), 53.11 (7), 57.06, 973.09 and 973.10 of the statutes.

(2) The procedures specified by statutes and various court decisions provide adequate safeguards for probationers and parolees pending promulgation of rules.

(3) The promulgation of rules relating to supervision of probation and parole necessarily requires sufficient time to allow input and review by a variety of persons and groups.

(4) The department of health and social services needs additional time to promulgate those rules.

**SECTION 2.** 227.01 (11) (h) of the statutes is created to read:

227.01 (11) (h) Relates to the management, discipline or release of persons who are committed to state institutions or to the department of health and social services or who are placed on probation;

**SECTION 3.** 227.01 (11) (h) of the statutes is repealed.

**SECTION 4. Nonstatutory provision.** The department of health and social services shall promulgate rules by January 1, 1982, under chapter 227 of the statutes which relate to the management, discipline or release of persons who are committed to state institutions or to the department or who are placed on probation. The department shall report, on a quarterly basis, to the appropriate standing committees in the senate and assembly on the status of these rules. The actual reporting dates shall be determined by each committee. The reporting requirement applies until June 30, 1982.

**SECTION 5. Initial applicability.** After the effective date of this act under SECTION 6 (1), this act applies to all court and administrative actions and proceedings regardless of when the actions and proceedings were commenced.

**SECTION 6. Effective dates.** (1) Except as provided in sub (2), this act takes effect on the day after its publication.